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™ UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 1
S Post Office Square, Suite 100
Boston, MA 02109-3912
May 18, 2018

BY HAND-DELIVERY

Wanda Santiago

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region 1
5 Post Office Square, Suite 100

Mailcode ORC 04-6

Boston, MA 02109-3912

Re:  In the Matter of Acadian Seaplants Limited
Docket No. FIFRA-01-2018-0006

Dear Ms. Santiago:

Enclosed for filing in the above-referenced action, please find the original and one copy of a
Consent Agreement and Final Order.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.
Sincerely,
M/Jk s

Maximilian Boal
Enforcement Counsel

Enclosure

cc: Lynn Bergeson, Esq., for Respondent



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

IN THE MATTER OF Docket No. FIFRA-01-2018-0006
CONSENT AGREEMENT
AND
FINAL ORDER

Acadian Seaplants Limited

30 Brown Avenue

Dartmouth, Nova Scotia, Canada
B3B 1X8

Respondent.

Proceeding under Section 14(a) of the
Federal, Insecticide, Fungicide, and
Rodenticide Act, as amended,

7 U.S.C. Section 136I(a).

e i i N e . A a Ea S

INTRODUCTION

1. The United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 1 (“EPA” or
“Complainant”) and Acadian Seaplants Limited (“Respondent™), enter into this Consent
Agreement and Final Order (“CAFO”) by mutual consent pursuant to 40 C.F.R § 22.13(b) of the
Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and
the Revocation/Termination, or Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22 (“Consolidated Rules
of Practice™). This CAFO resolves Respondent’s liabilities for violations of Section 12 of the
Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, as amended (“FIFRA™), 7 U.S.C. § 136j,
and implementing regulations at 40 C.F.R. Parts 150 — 180 and at 19 C.F.R. §§ 12.110-12.117

(collectively, “FIFRA Regulations™).
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2. This CAFO simultaneously commences and concludes the cause of action described
herein, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b), and Section 14(a) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C.
§ 136/(a). EPA and Respondent (collectively “the Parties™) agree to settle this matter through
this CAFO without the filing of an administrative complaint, as authorized under 40 C.F.R.
§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b). EPA and Respondent agree that settlement of this cause of action is in
the public interest and that entry of this CAFO without litigation is the most appropriate means
of resolving this matter.

3. Therefore, before any hearing or the taking of any testimony, without adjudication of

any issue of fact or law herein, the Parties agree to comply with the terms of this CAFO.

L STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BASIS

4. A “pesticide” is defined in Section 2(u) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(u), as “(1) any
substance or mixture of substances intended for preventing, destroying, repelling, or mitigating
any pest, (2) any substance or mixture of substances intended for use as a plant regulator,
defoliant, or desiccant, and (3) any nitrogen stabilizer,” with certain exceptions.

5. A “plant regulator” is defined in Section 2(v) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(v), as any
substance or mixture of substances intended, through physiological action, for accelerating or
retarding the rate of growth or rate of maturation, or for otherwise altering the behavior of plants
or the produce thereof, but shall not include substances to the extent that they are intended as

plant nutrients, trace elements, nutritional chemicals, plant inoculants, and soil amendments.
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6. Forty C.F.R. § 152.6 defines the substances excluded from regulation by FIFRA,
including plant nutrients and vitamin hormone products that are excluded from FIFRA’s
definition of plant regulators. Biostimulants composed of plant hormones, such as cytokinins,
gibberellins, ethylene, abscisic acid and auxins, are not excluded and therefore are categorized as
plant regulators for the purposes of FIFRA.

7. The importation of pesticides into the United States is governed by Section 17(c) and
(e) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §§ 1360(c) and 1360(e), and the regulations prescribed thereunder.

8. FIFRA Section 17(c), 7 U.S.C. § 1360(c) requires the Secretary of the Treasury to
notify the EPA Administrator of the arrival of pesticides in the United States.

9. FIFRA Section 17(e), 7 U.S.C. 1360(e) requires the Secretary of the Treasury, in
consultation with the Administrator, to prescribe regulations for the enforcement of FIFRA
Section 17(c).

10. Pursuant to FIFRA Section 17(e), the Secretary of the Treasury, through the United
States Customs Service, prescribed regulations for the enforcement of Section 17(c) of FIFRA at
19 CF.R. §§ 12.110-12.117.

11. 19 C.F.R. § 12.112(a) requires an importer desiring to import pesticides or devices
into the United States to submit to the EPA Administrator a Notice of Arrivals of Pesticides and
Devices (EPA Form 3540-1) (hereinafter “Notice of Arrival™), prior to the arrival of the
shipment in the United States.

12. Section 12(a)(2)(N) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(2)(N), provides that it is unlawful

for any person who is a registrant, wholesaler, dealer, retailer, or other distributor to fail to file
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reports required by FIFRA. Such reports include, but are not limited to, Notice of Arrivals
submitted to EPA for each shipment of pesticides or devices that are imported into the United
States under Section 17 of FIFRA and 19 C.F.R. § 12.112(a).

13. The FIFRA requirement to submit Notice of Arrivals prior to importing a pesticide or
device into the United States protects against unreasonable risks to human health or the
environment by providing EPA with vital information about pesticides and devices before their
arrival into the United States for distribution or sale. Notice of Arrivals provide inform;ation —
including active ingrédients, quantities, countries of origin, identity of producing establishments,
carriers, and ports of entry— that enables EPA to make informed decisions about whether
importation will pose unreasonable adverse risks to public health or the environment and, also,
provide critical contact information in the event of an emergency related to the movement of
potentially harmful pesticides or devices.

14. Section 14(a) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136/(a), authorizes the assessment of civil
penalties of up to $5,000 against any registrant, commercial applicator, wholesaler, dealer,
retailer, or other distributor for each violation of FIFRA and the FIFRA Regulations. Under the
Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996 (“DCIA”), 31 U.S.C. § 3701 note, and EPA’s Civil
Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule (“Penalty Inflation Rule”).at 40 C.F.R. Part 19, this
amount was increased to $7,500 for violations occurring after January 12, 2009. See 78 Fed. Reg.
66643-48 (Nov. 6, 2013). Under the 2015 amendments to the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation

Adjustment Act of 1990 (“2015 Penalty Inflation Act”), the $7,500 maximum penalty was raised
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to $19,446, effective January 15, 2018. See 28 U.S.C. § 2461 note; Pub. L.114-74, Section 701

(Nov. 2,2015); 81 Fed. Reg. 43091-96 (July 1, 2016); 83 Fed. Reg. 1190 (January 10, 2018).

I11. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

15. Respondent Acadian Seaplants Limited is a Canadian company that produces,
distributes, and sells various marine plant products, including the plant regulator product
Stimplex Crop Biostimulant.

16. Stimplex Crop Biostimulant includes active ingredient Cytokinin (as Kinetin).
Respondent registered Stimplex Crop Biostimulant as a pesticide with EPA under the registration
number: EPA Reg. No. 75287-3.

17. Respondent’s principal place of business is located at 30 Brown Avenue, Dartmouth,
Nova Scotia, Canada, B3B 1X8.

18. Respondent is a “person” as defined by Section 2(s) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(s).

19. Respondent is a “producer” as defined by Section 2(w) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(w).

20. At all times relevant to the violations alleged herein, Respondent maintained an
“establishment,” as defined by Section 2(dd) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(dd), which was
registered by EPA as a pesticide-producing establishment under Section 7 of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C.

§ 136e:

a. From approximately 1999 to February 23, 2015, Respondent maintained
an establishment located at 698 Conestoga Street, Cornwallis Park, Nova Scotia, BOS 1EO,

Canada (EPA Est. Registration 67016-CAN-002), and
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If remitted by any overnight commercial carrier:
U.S. Bank

Government Lockbox 979077

1005 Convention Plaza

Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL

St. Louis, Missouri 63101

Alternatively, Respondent may make payment by electronic funds transfer via

Federal Reserve Bank of New York

ABA = 021030004

Account = 68010727

SWIFT address = FRNYUS33

33 Liberty Street

New York, New York 10045

Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read:
“D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency”

Respondent shall simultaneously submit a copy of the penalty payment check or confirmation of
electronic wire transfer to:

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 1 (Mail Code: ORC 04-6)

5 Post Office Square, Suite 100
Boston, MA 02109-3912

and

Maximilian Boal, Enforcement Counsel
U.S. EPA, Region |

5 Post Office Square

Suite 100 (OES 04-2)
Boston, MA 02109-3912

Respondent shall include the case name and docket number ( “In the Matter of Acadian Seaplants

Limited, Docket No. FIFRA-01-2018-0006") on the face of each check or wire transfer

confirmation.
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For Respondent, Acadian Seaplants Limited:
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